
 

 
1 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
TUESDAY, 5 MARCH 2024 AT 9.00 AM 
 
THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR,  THE GUILDHALL, 
PORTSMOUTH 
 
Telephone enquiries to Democratic Services - Tel 023 9283 4870 
Email: Democratic@Portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 
If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above. 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Jason Fazackarley 
Councillor Stuart Brown 
Councillor Leo Madden 
  
 
 
(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting). 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk  
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
  
 1   Appointment of Chair  

  
 2   Declarations of interest  

  
 3   Licensing Act 2003 - Southsea Brunch Klub, 119 Elm Grove, Southsea, 

PO5 1LH (Pages 3 - 126) 
 

  Licensing Act 2003 - Review Application - Southsea Brunch Klub, 119 
Elm Grove, Southsea, PO5 1LH 
  

Public Document Pack

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


 
2 

 

The purpose of this report is for the committee to consider and determine a 
review application pursuant to section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003 ("the Act") 
in respect of the above premises. 
  
The Sub-Committee is requested to determine the application. 
  
Additional documents:  

 4   Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

  RECOMMENDED that the following motion be adopted: 
  
"Under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, 
the press and public be excluded for the consideration of the following 
item on the grounds that the report contains information defined as 
exempt in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972." 
  
Agenda item 5 - Licensing Act 2003 - Application to vary a premises licence to 
specify an individual as designated premises supervisor - Consideration of 
Objection Notice  
  
Exemption paragraph numbers 1, 2 & 3: 
1. Information relating to an individual 
2. Information that is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) 
  
(Members are asked to hand in their confidential papers to the Democratic 
Services Officer at the end of the meeting) 
   

 5   Licensing Act 2003 - Application to vary a premises licence to specify an 
individual as designated premises supervisor - Consideration of 
Objection Notice  
 

  The Sub-Committee is asked to determine the matter.  
 



Page 1 of 5 

 
REPORT TO: LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  5 March 2024 

REPORT BY: 
 

LICENSING MANAGER 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

 DEREK STONE 

Licensing Act 2003 - Review Application - Southsea Brunch Klub, 119 Elm 
Grove, Southsea, PO5 1LH 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is for the committee to consider and determine a review 
application pursuant to section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003 ("the Act") and in respect 
of the following premises: 
 
Southsea Brunch Klub, 119 Elm Grove, Southsea, PO5 1LH. 
 
The holder of the premises licence is recorded as Elm Grove Enterprises Ltd.  
 

2. THE REVIEW APPLICANT 
 
The application and grounds for the review are attached as Appendix A and has been 
submitted on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police and relates to the following licensing 
objectives: 
 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 
 Prevention of public nuisance 
 Public safety 
 Protection of children from harm 

 
In summary, Police have concerns about how the premises operate, in particular  
in relation to drunkenness, violent crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour. 
 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
SBK is located in Elm Grove at the junction with St Peters Grove. The premises 
were first licensed in November 1975 as a restaurant and remained a restaurant 
under various trading names until becoming SBK in 2022. 
 
A copy of the current premises licence is attached as Appendix B.  
 
In accordance with the act and prescribed regulations, public notice of the review 
application was given both at the premises and also at the Civic Offices.  In addition, a 
notice of the review application was also posted on the council website. 
 
 The review application was also served on the responsible authorities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Page 2 of 5 

 
 

4. REPRESENTATIONS BY RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES AND OTHER PERSONS 
 
Further representations have been received from Nickii Humphreys, Licensing 
Manager Portsmouth City Council and Simon Wood, Enforcement Support Officer 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Fire and Rescue Service.  
Eleven local residents have submitted representations detailing various concerns that 
they have with the premises some with supporting documentation and camera footage 
which are attached as Appendix C. 
 
Additionally, there are two support representations also attached at Appendix C. 
 
Officer note: 
 
At the request of Mr Jon Wallsgrove, the solicitor acting on behalf of Southsea 
Brunch Klub, no CCTV footage is to be shown prior to the hearing. 
 

5. POLICY AND STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
When determining the review application, the committee must have regard to: 
 

 Promotion of the licensing objectives which are; 
 

o Prevention of crime and disorder 
o Public safety 
o Prevention of public nuisance 
o Protection of children from harm 

 
 The Licensing Act 2003; 
 
 The adopted Statement of Licensing Policy;  

 
 Judgments of the High Court, (your legal adviser will give you guidance should 

this become necessary); 
 

 The current statutory guidance issued by the Home Secretary in accordance 
with section 182 of the Act;  

 
 The representations, including supporting information, presented by all the 

parties; and 
 
 The human rights of all the parties concerned to ensure both a fair and 

balanced hearing 
 

 The public sector equality duty requiring public bodies to have due regard to 
the need to: 
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by the Act; 
 

 

Page 4



Page 3 of 5 

 
 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected 
characteristic and people who do not share it; and 
 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
people who do not share it. The protected characteristics are as follows: 
 

 i) age, ii) disability, iii) gender reassignment, iv) pregnancy and maternity v) 
race - this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality, vi) religion or 
belief - this includes lack of belief, vii) sex and viii) sexual orientation. 

 
The Statutory Guidance provides advice in relation to the consideration of review 
applications. In particular, members should have regard to the following: 
 
Paragraph 11.1 - "The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing 
premises licences and club premises certificates represent a key protection for 
the community where problems associated with the licensing objectives occur 
after the grant or variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate." 
 
Paragraph 11.2 - "At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the 
licensing authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at 
the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives." 
 
Paragraph 11.10 - "Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have 
concerns about problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give 
licence holders early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and 
where possible they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they 
need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such 
warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a 
local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews 
should not be used to undermine this co-operation." 
 
Paragraph 11.16 - "The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing 
authority which it may exercise on determining a review where it considers them 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives." 
 
In reaching a decision upon a review application, the guidance offers assistance to 
the licensing authority as follows: 
 
Paragraph 11.17 - "The licensing authority may decide that the review does not 
require it to take any further steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. In 
addition, there is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning 
to the licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of 
time. It is expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an 
important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively 
promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder." 
 
Paragraph 11.18 - "However, where responsible authorities such as the police or 
environmental health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – 
either orally or in writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to 

Page 5



Page 4 of 5 

address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and 
should take this into account when considering what further action is appropriate. 
Similarly, licensing authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties 
which a licence holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker." 
 
Paragraph 11.19 - "Where the licensing authority considers that action 
under its statutory powers is appropriate, it may take any of the following 
steps: 
 
• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by 
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
 
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
incidental live and recorded music exemption); 
 
• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider 
that the problems are the result of poor management; 
 
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 
• revoke the licence." 

 
Paragraph 11.20 - "In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that 
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes 
of the concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken should 
generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an 
appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that 
instigated the review." 
 
Paragraph 11.21 - "For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the 
possibility that the removal and replacement of the designated premises supervisor 
may be sufficient to remedy a problem where the cause of the identified problem 
directly relates to poor management decisions made by that individual." 
 
Paragraph 11.22 - "Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct 
reflection of poor company practice or policy and the mere removal of the 
designated premises supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems 
presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are generated by 
representations, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of designated 
premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of deeper problems that 
impact upon the licensing objectives." 
 
Paragraph 11.23 - "Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of 
conditions and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently 
or for a temporary period of up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of 
the licence for up to three months could impact on the business holding the licence 
financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of 
promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a 
licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from 
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
 

Page 6



Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



From:  Pollard, Colin (16866) 
Sent:  07 February 2024 15:40
To:  Licensing Shared Email
Cc:
Subject:  Police Representation for Review of Southsea Brunch Klub Premises Licence
Attachments:  All Appendices & Index.docx

Good morning PCC Licensing Team,

Further to the Police application for review, for the Premises Licence at Southsea Brunch Klub, 119,
Elm Grove, Portsmouth

Since the initial review paperwork was submitted, further information has come to light which police wish to
add to the bundle for discussion at the Sub-Committee Hearing. I also wish to include some further
documents to the police bundle.

The cause of the police review is primarily related to Crime and Disorder but there are aspects of the
business which have impacted all four licensing objectives.

In addition to the 3 objectives impacted in the initial submission, the police will also be citing the
Protection of Children from Harm Objective, in relation to the incident on New Years Eve and CCTV
footage in Appendix 9.

The violence presented on New Years Eve, as seen on CCTV in Appendix 9, meets the criteria for
Serious Crime as defined in S53A of the Licensing Act 2003.

There is a breach of Annex 3 Condition 01, applied by the sub-committee in the October Hearing. This
relates to the provision of substantial food as a main meal and the advertising of ‘Last Dinner Sitting 9PM’ on
Fridays at SBK. See Appendix 16.

A CCTV request was made by PC 21451 Vincent, relating to the incident on the 08/09/2023 and other
licensing concerns. This request was challenged and access to the footage was not given quickly or easily.
Once a review was suggested by our force solicitor, the footage was eventually provided. Police consider this
to be a breach of the CCTV condition.

The CCTV, relating to New Years Eve, was eventually made available, in part, after the initial review
paperwork had been submitted. As I understand, this was prior to any knowledge on the part of Mr HUDSON
of the review submission.

The footage provided from the main camera, covering the dance floor and the start of the fighting on New
Years eve was corrupted and could not be viewed by police. This was highlighted in a meeting between
police, Mr HUDSON and his legal representative on 24/01/2024.

Following a further request for CCTV, made at this meeting, a link was sent to Mr HUDSON to supply the
footage from this camera. Unfortunately, a still image of the screen was sent and at this time this CCTV
request has not been met in full.

The CCTV requests, relating to New Years Eve have not provided access to the data quickly or easily. This
is a further breach of the CCTV condition.

APPENDIX A

Page 15



Of the police reports mentioned in the initial review submission, please see a summary of each incident
below:

On 29/04/2023 a female contacted police to report she had been assaulted by security staff at the
premises. The caller disclosed that she had been in SBK drinking when a bouncer put her to the ground
and put his hands on her throat. The caller was described by the call taker as ‘very much in drink’.
Attempts were made to make contact with the female to take a statement, however she failed to
engage and the matter was filed. I highlight this as the police call taker identified this customer of SBK
as ‘Very much in Drink’

On the 06/05/2023 a male contacted police to say that security needed help to deal with people at
SBK. The male had seen someone throw a punch but could not confirm an assault. On police
attendance the situation calmed down and no offences were disclosed. Clearly though, there had been
disorder at the premises which resulted in a call for service from police.

On the 22/07/2023 a female contacted police to report she had been spiked by an unknown male at
SBK. During the report, the female disclosed that she had consumed a large quantity of alcohol, ‘up to
10 vodka drinks’. She felt extremely drunk and contacted a friend to take her home. There was no
evidence available to confirm a spiking but this incident is included to highlight the excessive alcohol
consumption at SBK and extreme drunkenness disclosed by the customer.

On the 08/09/2023 a Manager at SBK contacted police to report a male trying to fight staff and
customers. The male had been removed from the premises and become ‘out of control’, placing keys in
his hand and trying to punch staff and customers. On police arrival the male was still present, with keys
on his person, however staff did not wish to provide statements and support the police investigation so
no further action was taken.

On the 16/09/2023 a member of the public contacted police and made the disclosure detailed in
Appendix 10:
Ever since SBK has opened the drug use and dealing in the area has increased on many occasions we
have ask people to move as the smell of weed is terrible also I would like to report that they use the
access to the rear of the funeral directors as a public toilet.

On the 23/09/2023 police were called by staff at SBK to report a male had assaulted a number of
people and was harassing women in the venue. Police attended and described the suspect as very
drunk and un-cooperative. The male was arrested for 4 x ABH offences and officers arranged to take
statements at a later date. Of the 4 staff who were assaulted, one is described as ‘Flat out did not want
to provide an MG11’ this is in relation to Mr Hudson. A second chose not to support police, a third was
described as ‘anti’ which I take to mean anti police and didn’t turn up to an appointment to give a
statement. The fourth did give a statement and the male was issued an Out of Court Disposal.

On the 27/10/2023 a member of the public contacted police and made the disclosure detailed in
Appendix 11:
All I can hear is anti social behaviour. Screaming and shouting. Loud music. Loud cars. That place is an
absolute nightmare. So much swearing. Customers from SBK regularly use the back of the co op car
park for drugs and toilet purposes. Page 16



On the 01/01/2024 a member of the public has contacted police after coming across what they
describe as a ‘massive brawl’ outside SBK. He reports that a young man has been knocked out and
about 30 people are fighting. Further calls are received from multiple members of the public and the
ambulance service call making a similar report.

A member of the public contacted police in relation to New Years Eve and gave the account shown in
Appendix 12.

Police have highlighted the Decision notice from the Sub-Committee hearing in October. I exhibit the ‘Resons
for Decision’ section of this document as Appendix 15.

Police wish to add the attached documents to the appendices for the police review. I have included a
contents page to assist with collation.

Kind regards,

Colin Pollard 16866
Police Alcohol Licensing Officer

********************************************************************************* 
This email contains information which is confidential and may also be privileged. It is for the exclusive use of the addressee(s)
and any views or opinions expressed within are those of the originator and not necessarily those of the Force. If you are not the
intended recipient(s) please note that any form of distribution, copying or use of this email or the information contained is
strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error please forward a copy to
informationsecurity@thamesvalley.police.uk and to the sender. Please then delete the email and destroy any copies of it. DO
NOT use this email address for other enquiries as it will not be responded to, nor any action taken upon it. If you have a non-
urgent enquiry, please call the Police non-emergency number 101. If it is an emergency, please call 999. Thank you. 
*********************************************************************************

Page 17



- Public - 

Appendices - Police Review of SBK 

• Appendix 1
Drinks Promotions & Advertisements

• Appendix 2
CCTV of 08/09/2023 – Drunk Male Ejected

• Appendix 3
CCTV of 08/09/2023 – 2nd Drunk Male Fighting Staff & Public

• Appendix 4(a)
CCTV of 23/09/2023 – Drunk Male Ejected & Throwing Punches

• Appendix 4(b)
CCTV of 23/09/2023 – 2nd drunk male vomits after getting in a taxi

• Appendix 4(c)
CCTV of 23/09/2023 – Original Drunk Male Fighting Staff

• Appendix 5
Email request from police for CCTV relating to NYE

• Appendix 6
Mobile Phone Footage of the NYE Fight, Inside the Venue

• Appendix 7
Security Body Worn Video of the aftermath of the NYE Fight

• Appendix 8
CCTV of 01/01/2024 – The NYE fight breaking out inside SBK

• Appendix 9 ***WARNING GRAPHIC CONTENT***
CCTV of 01/01/2024 - The fight spills outside & serious violence occurs.

• Appendix 10
Disclosure from Member of the Public on 16/09/2023

• Appendix 11
Disclosure from Member of the Public on 27/10/2023

• Appendix 12
Disclosure from Member of the Public relating to NYE

• Appendix 13
Mandatory Condition – Irresponsible Drinks Promotions

• Appendix 14
Annex 3 Condition – SBK Premises Licence

• Appendix 15
Licensing Sub-Committee Decision Notice from the October Hearing

• Appendix 16
Friday Flava’s advertisement from the SBK Website

• Appendix 17
CCTV OF 01/01/2024 - Dance Floor Camera

Page 18



- Public - 

SBK Review – Appendix 1 Page 1 of 3 

• 90 Minutes Bottomless Drinks, including Prosseco; Aperol Spritz, Draught Beer and
Managers Cocktails.

• Multi Genre Brunches with Live DJ’s or Performers.

• Sittings are 90 minutes long; bottomless brunch will start from the session time on
your booking. Tables are reserved for two hours with bottomless brunch served for
90 minutes beginning at the start of your session time, not the time of arrival. After
each session ends, you’re welcome to stay at the venue.

• Happy hour 2 for 1 cocktails 7pm-9pm

• Drinks packages from 8pm

• Drinks tables available from 8pm

• Discounted drinks available & walk ins welcome!

Page 19



- Public - 

SBK Review – Appendix 1 Page 2 of 3 

Page 20



- Public - 

Page 21



- Public - 

SBK Review – Appendix 1 Page 3 of 3 

Page 22



- Public - 

SBK Review - Appendix 2 

• CCTV Footage relating to Police Incident 44230366636 on 08/09/2023
• A heavily intoxicated male is ejected from the premises.

SBK Review – Appendix 3 

• CCTV Footage relating to Police Incident 44230366636 08/09/2023
• A drunk male is seen fighting with staff and customers.
• No control of the scene, members of the public are at risk in the road.

SBK Review – Appendix 4(a) 

• CCTV Footage relating to Police Incident 44230388192 on 23/09/2023
• Drunk male is ejected and throws punches at staff.

SBK Review – Appendix 4(b) 

• CCTV Footage of Police Incident 44230388192 on 23/09/2023.
• 2 drunk males leave SBK, enter a taxi, one vomits from the taxi.

SBK Review Appendix 4(c) 

• CCTV Footage of Police incident 44230388192 on 23/09/2023
• Drunk male from 4(a) fights staff and security.
• Members of staff and public are at risk in the road.

Page 23



- Public - 

SBK Review – Appendix 5 

On Wed, 3 Jan 2024 at 15:55, Pollard, Colin (16866) <colin.pollard@hampshire.police.uk> wrote: 

Ref: Southsea Brunch Klub (SBK), Elm Grove, Portsmouth 

I am contacting you as you are the sole director of Elm Grove Enterprises Ltd who are the 
Premises Licence Holder of SBK and the named DPS. 

Southsea Brunch Klub is of concern to Hampshire & Isle of Wight Police following reported 
incidents of crime and disorder at the premises which appear to be fuelled by drunkenness. 

I am currently looking into an incident ref: 44240000046 which occurred at the premises during 
New Years Eve into New Years Day. 

Please could you supply the following CCTV footage in line with your premises licence condition 
Annex 2- Condition 02: 

· Coverage of the main bar area, raised area, lower basement area and outside front of the
premises between 00:00-01:15 in the early hours of 01st January 2024.

· Coverage of the main bar area, raised area, lower basement area and outside front of the
premises from 02:00 in the early hours of 01st January 2024 until the final customer leaves the
premises.

I can send an electronic link for you to securely upload this footage or I can attend to collect. 
Please let me know as soon as possible which you would prefer. 

Kind regards, 

Colin Pollard 16866 

Police Alcohol Licensing Officer 

A response to this email was received on 04/01/2023 from Mr HUDSON, which said: 

From: Steve Hudson  
Sent: 04 January 2024 14:34 
To: Pollard, Colin (16866) 
Subject: Re: Police request for CCTV Ref: 44240000046 

Hi,  

Fabio is on holiday in Italy so I have picked this up. I will let you know the best method tomorrow. 

Regards 
Steve Hudson 

No further communications had been received at the time of the review submission on 12/01/2023 

Page 24



- Public - 

SBK Review - Appendix 6 

• Mobile Phone Footage Relating to Police Incident 44240000046 on New Years Eve.
• This was sent to Police twice.
• Footage shows 5 seconds of a portion of the fight inside the venue.

SBK Review – Appendix 7 

• Body Worn Video with Audio relating to Police Incident 44240000046 on New Years Eve.
• Showing the aftermath and further breakouts of disorder.
• Highlights the impact these types of incident have on local members of the public.

SBK Review – Appendix 8 

• CCTV Footage relating to Police Incident 44240000046 New Years Eve.
• This is the only camera angle provided of the incident at the time of writing (07/02/2024)
• This shows the beginning of the big fight inside the premises.
• Note the customers overlooking the fight who smash glasses and throw drinks into the

fighting crowd.

SBK Review – Appendix 9  ****WARNING GRAPHIC CONTENT**** 

• CCTV Footage relating to Police Incident 44240000046 New Years Eve.
• Shows the fight spilling into Elm Grove.
• Shows serious violence by way of a powerful kick to the head of a young male.
• Shows two young males are rendered unconscious from the level of violence.
• Shows children witnessing a serious violent incident.
• Shows Children running to escape violence.
• Shows a young female pushing a pram into the road to avoid the violence. She puts up

her hand to stop the traffic and protect her and the baby.
• Shows staff and customers at risk in the road.
• Shows a belt being used as a weapon.

Page 25



- Public - 

SBK Review – Appendix 10 

Ref: 44230380201  

Reported on 17/09/2023 20:47 

Please tell us what has happened during this incident: Ever since SBK has opened the drug 
use and dealing in the area has increased on many occasions we have ask people to move as the 
smell of weed is terrible also I would like to report that they use the access to the rear of the 
funeral directors as a public toilet 

SBK Review – Appendix 11 

Ref: 44230440876 

Reported on 27/10/2023 23:29 

Please tell us what has happened during this incident: All I can hear is anti social behaviour. 
Screaming and shouting. Loud music. Loud cards. That place is an absolute nightmare. So much 
swearing. 

Do you think drugs or alcohol have been involved in this incident?:Yes 

Please describe what you saw or heard specific to the drug and/or alcohol use: Customers 
from SBK regularly use the back of the co op car park for drugs and toilet purposes. 

SBK Review – Appendix 12 

• Disclosure from a member of the public relating to the incident on New Years Eve. Ref:
44240000046.

Please tell us anything else that might help pinpoint the location, if it is remote or 
unusual:  Elm Grove, outside SBK, The Thicket by the Co-op, outside the launderette and the 
top end of St Peter's Grove. 

Please tell us what has happened during this incident: It was about 12:45.  I was walking 
home alone from The Retreat, a group of men were hanging around in The Thicket by the Co-
op, one being sick. There was lots of shouting going on in Elm Grove and at least a dozen 
security people and a white patrol van were surrounding SBK. One said to me not to go down 
St Peter's Grove, it was dangerous: people and glass. I asked a big security guy if he would 
escort me at which point a fight broke out by the launderette and they rushed off. A security 
woman was in the middle of the road so I asked her to walk me home as it was only a few 
houses down the street. She was pleasant and helpful and saw me to my door. I am 75 and 
have been walking home on New Year's Eve from Old Portsmouth for 40 years and never 
before felt the need to ask for protection to get to my door. Why does SBK (which has a 
restaurant license) need over a dozen security guards to control its clients? There were at least 
half a dozen there when I drove home at about 11:30 on Friday 15 December. 

Do you think drugs or alcohol have been involved in this incident?: Yes 

Page 26



- Public - 

Please describe what you saw or heard specific to the drug and/or alcohol use: People 
being sick. There were several piles of vomit in the streets this morning. There was lots of 
shouting and aggressive behaviour. 

SBK Review – Appendix 13 

“SCHEDULE - Mandatory Licensing Conditions – Irresponsible Drinks Promotions 

1.—(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale 
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

(a)games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—

(i)drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii)drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b)provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c)provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d)selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e)dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

SBK Review – Appendix 14 

Annex 3 Condition from Premises Licence23/02740/LAPREM 

01 Substantial food (substantial food being defined as: food items prepared or cooked on the 
licenced premises and that are typically served as a main course or entrée) will be available to 
order until at least 90 minutes before the premises closes. 

Page 27



 
- Public - 

 

 

 

 

 

SBK Review – Appendix 15 

Sub-Committee - October Hearing – Decision Notice – Reasons for Decision 

The Sub-Committee accepted advice that it was considering the application to vary only 
i.e. whether the premises ought to be granted the changes sought and not a general review 
of the premises licence. 

The Sub Committee also accepted advice that it must focus its attention on the licensing 
objectives and cannot take issues that have not been formally raised in written 
representations into account. 

The Sub-Committee listened very carefully to residents' concerns - and has had to 
balance those concerns against the interests of the business. In doing so it has had to 
determine the extent of the impact that the proposed variation might have upon the 
licensing objectives of the prevention of public nuisance and crime and disorder. The 
hearing was unusual in that parts of the application had already been put in place (eg 
lobby, basement bar, and an apparent change in focus of trading). A previous hearing 
had imposed conditions clearly intended to limit the potential for nuisance that might be 
caused by a vertical drinking establishment rather than a premises primarily focussed on 
food and restaurant use. The Sub Committee heard repeated reassurance from the 
premises that its intention was to operate as a restaurant but to allow flexibility for tables 
to be "flipped" and for patrons to remain after having eaten. The Sub Committee heard 
evidence that the premises have been operating with typically 80-85 covers and that this 
was most definitely a restaurant - the intention was to run as such. Reducing covers to 
only 70, the Sub Committee felt, would likely lead to a disproportionate amount of 
drinkers compared to diners. Particularly given the restriction on the number of patrons at 
the bar (and now bars) has been removed. 

It was noted that the police and environmental health in particular had not made 
representations (notably following agreed amendment of the CCTV condition and 
introduction of the acoustic lobby). It was accepted by the Sub Committee that the 
inference as a result is support of the application from the lead authority for the 
prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance objectives. However, 
appropriate weight was attached to the clear strength of resident representations. First-
hand evidence was heard from residents that the premises had significantly increased 
anti-social behaviour and the issues complained of generally since it had operated under 
its latest / current management. It is unusual that such a large number of residents should 
express these concerns. It is unfortunate and disappointing that the application is a result 
of complaints received regarding noise and non-compliance with conditions - meaning it 
is a retrospective attempt to regularise the change in the business already in force. Whilst 
it is accepted that flexibility may mean the business has increased viability this has had to 
be balanced against the interests of the residents and the licensing objectives of the 
prevention of crime and disorder and public nuisance. The Sub Committee is keen to 
support and endorse a successful restaurant but recognises and acknowledges the 
residents' concerns given the level of anti-social behaviour in the area in general (the Sub 
Committee heard and accepted that not every instance of anti-social behaviour could 
necessarily be attributed to the premises) but on the balance of the evidence that it heard Page 28



 
- Public - 

determined that there was some impact on the licensing objectives in the vicinity of the 
premises. Accordingly, it was considered appropriate to implement some safeguards to 
ensure that sufficient restaurant provision remains in place at all times. The removal of 
the limit at the bars means that queuing outside the premises should be reduced. 

The Sub Committee has noted the strength of assertions regarding the nature of the 
business to be conducted and would stress that there is a process of review if the 
premises changes or is not run genuinely as a restaurant with ancillary alcohol provision. 
A review can be brought by residents or responsible authorities in due course.  

SBK Review – Appendix 16 

Friday Flavas – Elarged Advertisement from SBK Website 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



- Public - 

The current premises licence holder is Elm Grove Enterprises Ltd, the sole director of this 
company is Mr Steven Hudson. 

Mr Hudson is also currently in place as the designated premises supervisor (DPS) 
following an application on 24 January 2024 to vary the DPS on the premises licence from 
the previous manager, Mr Fabio Mazzoni.  This type of application permits the proposed 
DPS to have immediate effect pending any objections from the Chief Officer of Police 
which would result in the Licensing Sub-Committee determining the application. 

The Police have submitted an objection to the variation of DPS application in respect of Mr 
Hudson and this will be subject to consideration and determination by the Licensing Sub-
Committee under separate hearing procedures. 

An application to vary the premises licence was made in August 2023 following a 
compliance visit to the premises where it was established that the layout of the premises 
did not accord with the deposited plan with the Licensing Authority.  Works had been 
undertaken to the premises without licensing approval.  The application prompted a 
number of objections from local residents which led to a licensing sub-committee meeting 
on 9 October 2003.  After careful consideration of the facts before them, the Licensing 
Sub-committee determined to grant the application, in part, and made modifications to the 
licence in relation to the use of the premises for restaurant purposes. 

A copy of this decision and the associated reasons is attached as Appendix A. 

The Licensing Authority has had cause to undertake a number of compliance visits to 
these premises and a summary of those visits, in chronological order, is set out below: 

Date: 8 September 2023 Time: 21:00 hours 
Comments: 
Visit made to the premises following receipt of a complaint/service request. 
The premises was open with 2 SIA staff on duty outside and a rope barrier on the 
highway which obstructed the footpath at the junction of Elm Grove and St Peters 
Grove. 
The designated premises supervisor at the time was identified as Sam Wellington who 
was present at the premises.  An officer undertook a review of the licence requirements 
with the DPS. 
The ground and basement areas of the premises were checked and it was observed that 
a resident DJ was on site. 
Fire exits were clear. 
The kitchen area had some food provision (skewered kebabs) but "not much more". 
The officer reported that the emphasis was more of a "bar environment" than a food led 
outlet. 
Security provided at the premises was now being undertaken by Taurus and not 
Vespasian and the area manager of the security company arrived at the time of the visit. 
A floor walker was observed inside the premises with radio contact with the DPS and 
SIA staff. 

Page 44



 

- Public - 

The owner of the premises, Mr Steven Hudson arrived at the premises and advised that 
he had seen officers in attendance via the CCTV he was able to view on his mobile 
phone. 
Mr Hudson advised that he was the leaseholder of the premises which also had an Air 
B&B business at first floor level. 
Photographs were taken at the time of the visit and are attached as Appendix B. 
Date: 29 September 2023 Time: 23:08 hours 
Comments: 
Further visit to the premises for compliance purposes having regard to ongoing 
complaints from local residents. 
3 SIA staff were on duty outside of the premises and the security company has reverted 
back to Vespasian.  Door supervisor SIA licence checks undertaken and all satisfactory. 
The DPS, Sam, was on duty and accompanied the officer on a walk round of the 
premises.  The officer reported very loud DJ led music being played with about 25 
persons in the premises with 8 persons located at the bar area.  Lower basement bar 
was in use.  The officer noted that the patrons were of a very young age. 
Whilst at the premises, one male was ejected from the premises for "mooning" and was 
arguing with staff outside. 
A small group of people were seen to be standing outside the premises. 
The officer was of the view that the premises were operating as a late night bar. 
Compliant licence check visit. 
Date: 27 October 2023 Time: 22:42 hours 
Comments: 
Officers carried observations of the premises from a parked position at the top of St 
Peter's Grove.  Premises were observed to be open and 3 SIA staff seen outside. 
The officer reports a constant huddle of males/females (one worse for wear and 
stumbling) around the pavement area of St Peter's Grove.  It appeared that persons 
were either smoking and/or waiting for transport.  No barriers were evident outside the 
premises. 
The officer again reported a very young demographic of clientele. 
Date: 3 November 2023 Time: 22:12 
Comments: 
Premises was open and appeared to be busy with a private Halloween party taking 
place.  Entry to the premises was by invitation only.  3 Vespasian door staff working and 
using "clickers" to limit capacity to 150 persons only. 
Group of young females sitting on the pavement in St Peters Grove.  The main entrance 
to the premises were closed but loud music was evident coming from the premises when 
the door was used for access and egress. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

- Public - 

 
Date: 22 December 2023 Time: 22:24 
Visit to premises to deliver licence and summary to the premises following the 
amendment of the premises licence by way of a new DPS, Mr Fabio Mazzoni.  
2 SIA door staff from Vespasian were on duty outside the premises and persons were 
observed to be standing outside the premises smoking. 
Officers report that the premises was very very busy and when enquiries were made as 
to the nature of event being hosted that evening, they were advised that it was a "private 
party" company booking.  Officers spoke with males outside of the premises, who were 
wearing red wristbands, and they confirmed they worked for the named company. 
153 persons were present within the premises.  Whilst officers were in attendance, a 
notice was then placed on the front door of the premises to say that a private party was 
taking place. 
This notice was not on display when officers first arrived. 
Officers report that the premises was very very busy with vertical drinking, bar area 
crowded and a table of "left-over" or currently available buffet style food was observed 
by the front window. 
Officers report that there was no evidence of 85 table covers being available whatsoever 
along with no substantial food.  No table mat placings, condiments, cutlery, chef or 
waiting staff for food sales apparent. 
A DJ and guitarist were present and very loud music was being played. 
An officer visited the kitchen and reported that there was limited provision of foodstuff 
available. 
A further small table of food (much of it having been consumed) was observed at lower 
ground floor level. 
The officers provided the licence and summary to the DPS (Fabio) and they expressed 
concern about food availability. 
They were of the view that the premises were being operated as a vertical drinking 
establishment/club and not a restaurant. 
Officers observed a male vomiting outside the main entrance who then walked around 
the side of the premises into St Peters Grove.  Another male was seen falling down a 
small flight of stairs whilst inside the premises who appeared unsteady and in drink and 
another male who was seated and who appeared to either have "wet himself" or spilt 
drink over his groin area. 

Pending investigations: 
Following the visit to the premises on 22 December 2023, officers are actively 
investigating breaches of the premises licence conditions (which is an offence under 
section 136 of the Licensing Act) relating to: 

• Non-compliance with the requirement of 85 covers at the premises; 

• Provision of substantial food; and 

• Failure to both keep and provide CCTV as requested by licensing authority 
officers. 

 

Page 46



Page 47



APPENDIX A

Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Headquarters 
Leigh Road 

Eastleigh 
Hampshire 

SO50 9SJ 

t. 
e.  
w.  

Licensing Manager 
Portsmouth City Council 
Civic Offices 
Guildhall Square 
Portsmouth 
PO1 2AL 

Date 01 February 2024 

Dear Sirs, 

We would like to make a representation in support of the review of the licences for the 
Southsea Brunch Klub, 119 Elm Grove Southsea, PO5 1LH, brought about by the HIW 
Constabulary. 

We are currently in contact with the premises and have some fire safety concerns which we 
are dealing with via our Fire Safety Matters process. 

This process is a formal process that requires certain issues to be addressed and if it is at 
the top end of this process, they are to be completed within a set timeline. There are three 
levels to it whereas level one is advisory only and level three requires a follow up. It usually 
arises after an audit of the premises has been conducted and issues found that fall short of 
enforcement or prohibition action. This means that they are serious enough to require 
completion for the safety of the business and the occupants of the premises but may not be 
serious enough to be considered as breaches of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Act 
2005. Failure to comply with the Fire Safety Matters process in the time allowed can 
however, result in the issues being escalated to enforcement notices. It is part of the ethos of 
Regulatory work where all parties involved try to work together to achieve a satisfactory 
outcome. 

On the 13th October 2023 an Alleged Fire Risk was raised about the premises by a member 
of the public surrounding the escape routes from the flats above. This was looked at and 
contact was made with the owner of the premises which satisfied the immediate concern but 
raised enough concern for an audit of the premises to be carried out which was held on the 
1st November 2023.  

As a result of this audit a Fire Safety Matters level 2 letter was issued. This matter was listed 
with thirteen areas of concern which covered the fire risk assessment not being suitable and 

APPENDIX C

Page 59



 

sufficient, a document that should underpin the fire safety of a premises. Various basic 
safety management practices that were not being followed and compartmentation issues 
separating the premises from the flats above. This is at annex 1. Annex 2 is the Note For 
File recorded by the Inspector which shows details in note form what the issues were. The 
letter for the owner covered the issues in detail and outlined what they needed to do to put 
them right.  
 
With further information coming to light about the usage of these premises our enforcement 
team reviewed the outcome of the audit and requested that given the nature of the premises 
and what we were hearing about it that a second review was necessary. 
 
On the 13th December 2023 a different fire safety inspector attended the premises and 
conducted an audit. During that audit similar issues were found that gave rise to the concern 
of some people being put at risk on those premises in case of fire. Given the further 
information as to the use of the premises the outcome was slightly different. It was still left as 
a fire safety matters outcome but this time it was a level three which requires the follow up 
procedure. 
 
A fire safety matters report was compiled and passed onto Steve Hudson of those premises 
outlining the works that were required to address the matters, and considering the nature of 
some of the works required a completion time was given as 1st May 2024. This letter is at 
annex 3. 
 
Our concerns are that as the premises are not currently as safe for customers, staff and 
residents living in the flats as we would require. If the works listed in the FSM 3 letter as per 
annex 3 are completed, then the premises would be considered safe for its use as 
envisaged by the description of the operation being a mainly food led venue with some 
drinking and dancing as ancillary to the food. The reason for this is that the customers would 
be calmer and more responsive in the event of a fire and could be evacuated relatively 
safely.   
 
However, it appears that the venue is more of a drink led venue and the food being 
secondary in nature, especially as it is open so late. Or is certainly so on some nights in the 
week. The clientele at such venues behaves in a different nature to those in a restaurant 
given the manner of the activity and the amounts of alcohol generally consumed. This is 
evidenced within the report from the Police for this venue and can been seen around the 
country in other premises. Our concern is that the fire safety measures that are in place may 
not prove sufficient in the evacuation of people who are intoxicated and agitated. To make 
the premises fit for such use would require further works and detract from the nature of the 
premises as it is currently said to be used. 
 
We therefore support the recommendations made in the review document to reduce the 
opening hours and put more of an emphasis on the use of the premises as a restaurant. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

Simon Wood 

Enforcement Support Officer  

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Fire and Rescue Service 

Page 60



Headquarters 
Leigh Road 

Eastleigh 
Hampshire 
SO50 9SJ 

t. 
e.
w. 

1 

For the attention of Steve Hudson 
Southsea Brunch Klub Cafe 
119 Elm Grove 
Southsea 
PO5 1LH  

Date: 07 November 2023 
Enquiries To: Paul Martin     My Reference: F6/PM/10444/00448066 
Mobile Tel: 

Dear Mr Hudson, 

Letter of Fire Safety Matters 
Premises: Southsea Brunch Klub Cafe, 119 Elm Grove, Southsea, PO5 1LH 

I visited your premises on 01 November 2023 and evaluated the fire safety provided. I am of the 
opinion that some people are at risk in case of fire. You have reassured me that you will make 
necessary improvements. You have an ongoing duty to ensure the safety of people. The attached 
schedule sets out what you need to do. 

Timescale for Completion 

You should complete the work outlined in the schedule as soon as possible, balancing the need for 
safety against the demands on your business or undertaking. Based on the reassurance you have 
given me, I do not intend to return in connection with this visit. 

Consequence for Non-compliance 

If you do not address the matters in the schedule (or I find that safety provisions have worsened), 
the authority may serve an enforcement notice on you. An enforcement notice would legally bind 
you to do the work. 

Route to Appeal 

If you are unsure of the contents of this schedule, you can clarify or challenge what you need to do 
by contacting us on the above details. 

HFRS ANNEX 1

Page 61



Have Your Say 
 
We would also appreciate feedback on our visit, please feel free to complete our post engagement 
form, it should take a couple of minutes and all responses are anonymous (unless you provide us 
with your details). HIWFRS Fire Safety Post Engagement Feedback Form. 
 
Alternative Solutions 
 
You might want to use a different solution to meet the outcome(s) stated in the schedule.  An 
alternative approach might enable you to make improvements that better meet your needs. I will 
be happy to discuss your ideas and suggestions. 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 

 
Paul Martin 

 
Authorised Fire Safety Inspecting Officer  
On behalf of, and duly appointed by the Hampshire & IOW Fire & Rescue Authority 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 62

https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=Vz4RJexx20aAR6H6lrm2jfoQLWsrSgxCmap9ykiGnr5UQllEUktWN0ZRNElWTTNaOEsxREJSTU1IOCQlQCN0PWcu


Schedule of Fire Safety Improvements 
 
Notes to this schedule: 
The government guidance most suitable to your premises is CLG guide “Places of small / medium 
assembly” which can be found at: http://www.cfoa.org.uk/19512  
Before you make certain changes to the premises, you may have to apply for approval from 
statutory bodies and/or others having interest in them. If you have doubt about the need for 
approval, you should ask the relevant body. For example, you may have to apply for approval from 
a Building Control Body to make material alterations, website: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/2214/regulation/3/made tells you how.  
  
You might also need to apply for the property owners' permission or for listed building consent, 
website: https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/planning/consents/lbc/ among others tells you 
how. 
 
 
 

Item Number 1 

Outcome This work is necessary to identify significant risks from within the 
premises.  

Suggested 
Action 

You should undertake a/review your fire risk assessment and 
ensure that it is suitable and sufficient in order to identify the fire 
safety measures that you already have in place and to identify any 
further fire safety measures that you need to implement.  
 
If you identify that additional fire safety measure(s) are required in 
consequence of the fire risk assessment, then you must provide 
them.  
  
You should record:  
i.  The significant findings of your fire risk assessment (i.e., what 
you have done and what you will do to ensure the safety of people 
in case of fire).  
ii. Any people identified as being especially at risk.  
iii. The arrangements that you have in place to plan, organise, 
control, monitor and review the fire safety measures identified 
within the risk assessment.  
  
You should review you fire risk assessment at least annually or if 
there are any significant changes to the building or use of the 
building.  

Page 63

http://www.cfoa.org.uk/19512
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/2214/regulation/3/made
https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/planning/consents/lbc/


Reason The fire risk assessment was not suitable and sufficient.  
 
Insufficient consideration was given to determining the risks 
regarding: 
 

1. Relevant persons (Flats above) – Fire separation breaches 
in kitchen ceiling and door to stairs to flat above do not 
provide adequate protection to the accommodation above. 
 

2. Occupancy – Not stated in document 
 

3. No. of exits – Not considered for occupancy levels, inward 
opening front door, escape route passing through risk room 
(Kitchen) not considered 
 

4. Travel distances not considered 
 

5. Fire doors – Rear store room needs to be FD30s to 
separate escape routes 
 

6. Alarm system – Stated to be L1 when L5 
 

 
 

Item Number 2 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of fire. 

Suggested 
Action 

The mains Electrical system should be checked. This must be 
repeated every 5 years for a commercial property. You need to 
engage a suitably qualified electrician to inspect and certify your 
installation and provide an EICR (electrical installation condition 
report) 

Reason Electrical installations left untested may malfunction and be a 
cause of a fire.  

 
 

Item Number 3 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of fire. 

Suggested 
Action 

The Gas installation should be checked. This must be repeated 
every year for a commercial property. You need to engage a 
suitably qualified person to inspect and certify your installation.  

Reason Gas installations left untested may malfunction and be a cause of 
a fire.  

 
 
 

Page 64



Item Number 4 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of fire. 

Suggested 
Action 

You should carry out portable appliance testing to all your 
appliances 

Reason Portable appliances testing was not carried out. Left untested, 
appliances may malfunction and be a cause of a fire.  

 

Item Number 5 

Outcome This work is necessary to ensure the fire safety systems operate 
when they are needed most. 

Suggested 
Action 

Ensure that Fire Alarm System and Emergency Lighting are 
subject to the required testing and maintenance schedule. This 
should be carried out by a competent person.  
 
Fire Alarm: Weekly fire alarm test and annual service of complete 
system in accordance with BS5839-6:2004. 
 
Emergency Lighting: Monthly function test and annual duration 
test & servicing in accordance with BS5266-1:2016.  
 
Documentation should be available to support testing and 
maintenance.  
 

Reason The Emergency lighting and fire alarm system was not properly 
tested and maintained.  This means that it could fail without 
warning or at the moment it is needed most, and that people 
would be at risk in case of fire.  
 

 

Item Number 6 

Outcome This work is necessary to help people understand what to do if fire 
breaks out.  

Suggested 
Action 

Your emergency plan should be documented so it is clear and 
available for people to read  

Reason There was no evidence of a fire procedure being documented. 
Your staff and visitors may not know what to do in the event of a 
fire 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



Item Number 7 

Outcome This work is necessary to detect fire and raise an alarm.  

Suggested 
Action 

Provide and install a fire alarm that complies with BS 5839 - 1 
  
The system must be capable of giving a warning to everyone who 
might be affected. This includes for example, people with hearing 
impairment or within noisy environments.  
 

1. Extend the coverage of the alarm to include the rear 
escape route 

2. Either install visual warning beacons or a system that cuts 
the music so that people can either see or hear the alarm 

3. Provide a zone map 
  
The system should be installed and commissioned by a 
competent person.  

Reason The existing system is not suitable because there is insufficient 
coverage and people may not hear the alarm due to music. This 
means that people may not be warned in time to escape safely.  

 

Item Number 8 

Outcome This work is necessary to make sure that escape routes 
(corridors, stairs, and doors) can be safely used whenever they 
are needed. 

Suggested 
Action 

Limit the number of people in the premises to 160 people.  

Reason There are not enough suitable exits for the number of people who 
use the building because the front escape route has inward 
opening doors limiting it to 60 people. This means that people may 
not be able to reach safety before being affected by fire and / or 
smoke.  

 

Item Number 9 

Outcome This work is necessary to make sure that escape routes 
(corridors, stairs, and doors) can be safely used whenever they 
are needed. 

Suggested 
Action 

Ensure that escape route to the rear is illuminated externally by 
emergency lighting that will operate if the local lighting circuit fails.  
  
The system should conform to BS 5266 

Reason People exiting the rear of the building may not be able to find the 
way out in an emergency because reason.  

 
 

Item Number 10 
Page 66



Outcome This work is necessary to make sure that escape routes 
(corridors, stairs, and doors) can be safely used whenever they 
are needed. 

Suggested 
Action 

Install a fire door that will hold back smoke and fire for 30 minutes 
This is between the rear store room / kitchen area and the rear 
escape route 

Reason You need to have sufficient fire separation between the kitchen 
and rear escape routes to avoid both being compromised by fire at 
the same time and provide people with adequate time to escape in 
the event of a fire 

 

Item Number 11 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of fire spread. 

Suggested 
Action 

The ceiling separating the kitchen and flat above, should afford a 
minimum of 30 minutes fire resistance. This is in conjunction with a 
sounder in the flat linked to the existing fire alarm system in the 
bar. 

Reason Fire may quickly spread from one part of the premises to another. 
People in the accommodation above may be affected by a fire in 
the commercial area below. This means that people may not be 
able to reach safety before being affected by fire and/or smoke. 

 

Item Number 12 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of fire spread. 

Suggested 
Action 

The door separating the rear escape route and the stairs to the flat 
above, should afford a minimum of 30 minutes fire resistance. This 
is in conjunction with a sounder in the flat linked to the existing fire 
alarm system in the bar. 

Reason Fire may quickly spread from one part of the premises to another. 
People in the accommodation above may be affected by a fire in 
the commercial area below. This means that people may not be 
able to reach safety before being affected by fire and/or smoke. 

 

Item Number 13 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of the spread of fire.  

Suggested 
Action 

Ensure that the plastic decorations do not support the spread of 
fire. 

Reason A fire could spread rapidly and make the escape route unsafe for 
people to use.  

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Note For File – Fire Safety Audit 

Inspection Type: FSA 
Job Number:  2539494 

A Fire Safety Audit was carried out at the above premises on 01/11/2023 

Below is a brief summary of the main items which were noted during the inspection and 
recorded in my contemporaneous notebook number 633  page number 18 

Scan_Paul 
Martin_20231106-13

Deficiencies found 

Fire risk assessment  - Major 

Adjacent purpose groups not considered (Flats above) 
No. of exits not considered – Occupancy numbers, inward opening front door, escape route 
passing through risk room not considered 
Travel distances not considered 
Compartmentation has not been considered – No mention of breaches in kitchen ceiling and 
also door to upstairs flat not sufficient standard 
Alarm system not assessed adequately – States L1 where it is L5 

Actions to prevent fire – Minor 

10 Electrical Certificate not Supplied 
10 Gas Certificate not Supplied 
10 PAT testing not carried out 

Staff training / info to employees  - Broadly compliant 

Maintenance – Major 

11 Unable to surface documents when requested 
17 Alarm system – no evidence of an annual test 
17 Alarm system – no evidence of a weekly test 
17 EL – no evidence of an annual working duration test 
17 EL – no evidence of a monthly function test 

Emergency plan/policy – Major 

15 Emergency Plan not available 

Fire alarm system – Broadly compliant 

HFRS Annex 2

Page 69



 
One detector required in rear escape route 
 
 
FF Media - Broadly compliant 
 
 
 
 
Means of escape – Minor 
 
14 Fire doors were not in place where required – The door to the store room/kitchen needs to 
be FD30s 
 
NOTE: 
One escape route passes through the kitchen / serving area. Escape routes are not normally 
accepted through risk rooms however after discussion with my PDM Richard O’Brien we 
agreed that there is an alternative exit and as long as this exit has adequate fire separation 
from the kitchen, this can be acceptable. This will require the door to the kitchen / store room 
to be upgraded 
 
 
General fire precautions – Minor 
 
8 Compartmentation was insufficient – Holes seen in kitchen ceiling above ceiling tiles. Door 
to upstairs flat not 30 min (No strips/seals) 
 
8 Wall linings were not suitably fire resistant – Plastic plants could not be confirmed as FR 
 
 
 
 
Maintenance records: 
 
Fire Alarm - Not Provided 
 
Extinguishers Provided – Annual certificate provided 
 
Emergency lighting Not Provided 
 
Staff training  Provided – carried out 6m, evidence by way of hand written log 
 
 
A physical inspection of the premises was conducted. 
 
The detailed findings of the inspection can be noted in the Fire Safety Audit Form within the 
CFRMIS record, the issued letters to the responsible person and my contemporaneous 
notebook identified above. 
 
 

Page 70



HFRS ANNEX 3

Page 71



Page 72



 

3 
 
 

 
 
Schedule of Fire Safety Improvements 
 
Notes to this schedule: 
The government guidance most suitable to your premises is Small / medium places of assembly 
which can be found at: Fire Safety: Guidance for those with legal duties 
 
Before you make certain changes to the premises, you may have to apply for approval from 
statutory bodies and/or others having interest in them. If you have doubt about the need for 
approval, you should ask the relevant body. For example, you may have to apply for approval from 
a Building Control Body to make material alterations, website: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/2214/regulation/3/made tells you how.  
 
You might also need to apply for the property owners' permission or for listed building consent, 
website: https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/planning/consents/lbc/ among others tells you 
how. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

 

Item Number 1 

Outcome This work is necessary to identify significant risks from fire within the 
premises and to assess the ability of all persons to vacate the premises in 
an emergency as quickly as possible. 

Suggested 
Action 

The responsible person must make a suitable and sufficient assessment of 
the risks to which relevant persons are exposed. The fire risk assessment 
(FRA) must be recorded in full and identify:- 
 

• the findings of the assessment, including the measures which have 
been, or will be, taken by the responsible person pursuant to the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, as amended. This 
should include matters relating to:- 
(i) the identity of the potential fire hazards in the premises,  
(ii) an evaluation of the risks arising from the hazards, and whether 
the existing fire precautions are adequate or whether additional 
control measures are necessary to remove the hazards or reduce 
the risks ,  
(iii) The actions taken or required to reduce the risk to persons from 
the spread of fire and smoke (protective measures),  
(iv) The actions persons need to take in case of fire, including details 
of any persons nominated to carry out a particular function (the 
emergency plan), and  
(v) The information, instruction and training identified that people 
need and how it will be given. 
  

• The FRA must also include any group of persons identified by the 
assessment as being especially at risk.  
 

The fire risk assessment should be reviewed regularly, such as annually or 
when the level of risk changes, to keep it up to date and evidence of the 
review should be maintained. 

Reason The fire risk assessment was not suitable and sufficient.  
 
Insufficient consideration was given to determining the risks regarding: 
 

1. Relevant persons (Flats above) – Fire separation breaches in 
kitchen ceiling and door to stairs to flat above do not provide 
adequate protection to the accommodation above. 
 

2. Occupancy – Not stated in document 
 

3. No. of exits – Not considered for occupancy levels, inward opening 
front door, escape route passing through risk room (Kitchen) not 
considered 
 

4. Travel distances not considered 
 

5. Fire doors – Rear storeroom needs to be FD30s to separate escape 
routes 
 

6. Alarm system – Stated to be L1 when L5 
 

Page 74



 

 

 
Item Number 2 

Outcome This work is necessary to make sure that escape routes (corridors, stairs, 
and doors) can be safely used whenever they are needed. 

Suggested 
Action 

Protect the escape route that passes through the kitchen by enclosing it in 
fire resistant construction 

Reason There are not enough suitable exits for the number of people who use the 
premises. This means that some people might still be in the building when 
fire overtakes them.  

 

Item Number 3 

Outcome This work is necessary to make sure that escape routes (corridors, stairs, 
and doors) can be safely used whenever they are needed. 

Suggested 
Action 

Maintain the storeroom fire door so that it will hold back smoke and fire for 
30 minutes This is between the rear store room / kitchen area and the rear 
escape route 

Reason This door is not to British Standards and is of “Notional” standard. This 
means it requires a suitable maintenance regime to ensure its 
effectiveness. 

 

Item Number 4 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of fire spread. 

Suggested 
Action 

The door separating the rear escape route (Hallway) and the stairs to the 
flat above, should afford a minimum of 30 minutes fire resistance. This is in 
conjunction with a sounder in the flat linked to the existing fire alarm system 
in the restaurant / club. 

Reason Fire may quickly spread from one part of the premises to another. People in 
the accommodation above may be affected by a fire in the commercial area 
below. This means that people may not be able to reach safety before 
being affected by fire and/or smoke. 

 

Item Number 5 

Outcome This work is necessary to reduce the risk of fire spread. 

Suggested 
Action 

The ceiling separating the kitchen and the flat above, should afford a 
minimum of 30 minutes fire resistance.  

Reason Fire may quickly spread from one part of the premises to another. This 
means that people may not be able to reach safety before being affected 
by fire and/or smoke.  
  

 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77



2

Crime and disorder: 
Adrian was verbally abused and intimidated on Saturday 7th October by a group of men, who were attempting to gain entry to SBK, when I asked one of them to 
not urinate in a driveway in St. Peter’s Grove.  
Our son's car wingmirror was broken off recently. 
Residents have seen drug taking occurring in St Peter’s Grove and drug dealing at the back of the Co-op on Elm Grove.  
Residents have seen people having sex near the rear of the funeral parlour on Elm Grove, opposite SBK.  
Residents have found people sitting on cars and there has been recent vandalism to vehicles, in the form of broken wing mirrors and scratched paintwork.  
Residents have had glass bottles thrown into their gardens and even people entering gardens, breaking plants and vomiting.  
Residents who have confronted anti-social behaviour, have had threats of violence and abusive behaviour towards them.  
Residents have witnessed fighting between SBK customers in the street. In one instance, on New Year's Eve, a resident was unable to gain access to her home 
via the St Peter's Grove/Elm Grove junction due to a mass fight spilling out from SBK (see video clip of fight inside SBK). 
 
 
Here is the WeTransfer link, please let us know if you cannot access these, and we can send individual files. 
https://we.tl/t-A0UJ0Ekylw 
 
Yours faithfully 
Laura Cook and Adrian Bird 

 
 

Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



P
age 82



Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

- Official - 

APPENDIX C 

Comment on 24/00435/LAREVI  
Southsea Brunch Klub 119 Elm Grove Southsea PO5 1LH 
 
I write in support of the application. The application sets out clear and detailed reasoning, I applaud the work 
put into it. 

Revocation of the licence 
The Police recommends the Sub-Committee “consider revocation of the premises licence”. Given the scale of 
the issues I support revocation. A new licence application for the premises can be made in the future and a 
licence granted with conditions reflecting the planning consent for the premises as a restaurant.  

Should the Sub-Committee not be minded to revoke 
I ask that any changes to the licence include ALL of the changes given as examples, (starting at the bottom of 
page 4 of the application) as a minimum.  
 
One of these changes is a condition that the “Sale of alcohol to be authorised as ancillary to a table meal only”. 
That’s simple and easily understood. “No meal, no drink.” 

Removal of DPS 
The Police seek “Removal of DPS”. It is to be hoped that the Chief Constable will give notice under s 37 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 should the individual be nominated as a DPS in the future. 

“Whilst making your decision, please consider whether the Sub-
Committee were deliberately mislead during the hearing in October 
2023.”  
I attach a video clip extracted from the October hearing. You will hear Mr Wallsgrove, solicitor for the licensee 
saying “its primary focus is on food” and “it’s still going to operate as a restaurant” and “I want to reassure you 
that the focus is food, it is to trade as a restaurant” and “maybe go to the bar and have a relaxed drink at the 
bar then freeing up that table for other people to come in and use, and eat.” 
 
The Sub-Committee’s decision included the wording “The Sub Committee heard repeated reassurance from 
the premises that its intention was to operate as a restaurant but to allow flexibility for tables to be "flipped" 
and for patrons to remain after having eaten. The Sub Committee heard evidence that the premises have been 
operating with typically 80-85 covers and that this was most definitely a restaurant - the intention was to run 
as such.” 
 
I also attach six short video clips downloaded from SBK’s Instagram Feed on 19 Jan 2024 and I ask the 
members to view these and SBK’s advertising in Annex A. It is for the Sub-Committee, having taken note of Mr 
Walsgrove’s statements on 9 Oct 2023 on behalf of his client to decide whether they were been misled. 

Public Nuisance Complaints to PCC 
Annex B contains a list of complaints made to PCC about the premises together with the covering e-mail. I 
requested a list of complaints for the last three calendar years. The response indicates no complaints from 1 
Jan 2021 until after the license was transferred to the current holder on 16 Nov 2022 and 13 complaints since 
then until the end of 2023. I am advised by Lorraine Astill of PCC that the first action on receipt of a complaint 
is to write to the premises offering advice. The level of ongoing complaints suggests this advice was 
consistently ignored.  

Page 85



 

2 
 

- Official - 

Licensing compliance 
I invite the Sub-Committee to ask the Licensing Officer for details of visits to the premises by his staff since 16 
Nov 2022, the reason for each visit, the nature of any non-compliance found, what advice was offered, and 
whether that advice was followed. 
 
Michael Cross 

 
 
  

Page 86



 

3 
 

- Official - 

Annex A 
Breach of Licence Conditions - SBK Marketing Material 
 

 

Advertising from SBK Website. This was on 
19 Jan 2024. Note “LAST DINNER SITTING 
9PM” 
 
Condition 1 of Annex 3 of the license 
states “Substantial food (substantial food 
being defined as: food items prepared or 
cooked on the licensed premises and that 
are typically served as a main course or 
entrée) will be available to order until at 
least 90 minutes before the premises 
close.” Opening Hours stated in the 
licence are until 01:30 Mon-Thu and 
02:30 Fri & Sat. 

  
 
  

Page 87



 

4 
 

- Official - 

Advertising on SBK Instagram page on 18 Oct 2023, 
nine days after Mr Walsgrove had told the Sub-
Committee “I want to reassure you that the focus 
is food, it is to trade as a restaurant”.  
 
Advertising material included  

• Pumping soundsystem 
• Basement hangout 
• 2 bars 
• Lighting and visual installations 
• DJs playing forward thinking dance 

music 
• Let's party 

 

 
 

I referred this to Mr Stone on 18 Oct and received a reply the same day. 
 
“Michael 
  
I have enquired about this with Mr Hudson who has informed me that whilst this was an enquiry with SBK no 
firm booking had been placed so the event is not going ahead. 
Mr Hudson has been contacted by some residents and he is going to update them himself. 
  
Regards 
  
Derek” 
 
If there was “no firm booking” why was it being advertised by SBK two days before it was due to take place? I 
have no doubt that this event would have taken place had Mr Stone not intervened. 
 

Page 88



Page 89



 

6 
 

- Official - 

 

Page 90



 

- Official - 

APPENDIX C 
Support for Licensing review  SBK Brunch Klub Elm Grove Southsea. 
 
From Karen Fricker   
 
I have lived in my current house for 30 years and have seen the premises currently housing SBK in 
many guises. I had never had reason to complain about the anti social behaviour and disturbing 
noise and public nuisance from any other establishment. Since the opening of this”Klub” I have 
made over 10 complaints to varying organisations including Steve Hudson and there is no 
improvement. 
Every Saturday and Sunday night I have to relocate my bedroom to evade the noise of drunken 
shrieking and abusive people outside SBK, people milling around St Peter’s Grove and not  leaving 
until 3.00am. 
I have witnessed girls passed , sitting in the gutters abusing staff in the local co op for refusing to sell 
them alcohol, prople urinating and vomiting not only in my garden but other peoples too . 
There has to be a causal link to the change we as residents have experienced since April 2023. 
Taxi’s regularly double park and minibuses cause hazardous traffic conditions letting out groups of 
up to 8 people on the junction between St Peter’s Grove and Elm Grove. Clients blocking the 
pavement outside the Klub causing the public to step into the road to pass them. 
We have had countless reassurance from Steve Hudson that things will change. 
“The premises is not going to change in character. it’s primary focus is on food” 
“There have been some issues but they are very few and far between” 
Steve Hudson from Evening News article by Josh Wright 10.10.23 At the last review the sub 
committee had repeated reassurance that SBK’s intention was to operate as a restaurant and 
Councillor Stuart Brown said he was keen to support and endorse a successful restaurant. This is not 
a restaurant it is a club catapulted into a residential area causing high levels of distress to many, 
many people. Why did the sub committee not know how many times the police had been called at 
their review? 
I quote Sam Wellington last manager of SBK who was interviewed by Sophie Lewis of The News 
when SBK opened. 
“The benefit of being a new club is that you can do what you want with it”’ 
This venture which glamorises intoxicating binge  drinking is a club and it’s Instagram and face book 
posts will certainly endorse this. 
I sincerely hope that you have a more enlightened committee to assess the licensing application this 
time in order to stop the public nuisance and threat to public safety which this establishment causes. 
 
Regards  
 
Karen Fricker 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93



The One Eyed Dog or the Deco or restaurants in Elm Grove. I am now
apprehensive of walking down St Peter's Grove on Friday and Saturday nights,
when there is a lot of noise coming from SBK and people are hanging around in
the road. I frequently visit friends and venues in the neighbourhood on foot and
sometimes have to park my car several blocks away from my house.

Kind regards

 
 

Page 94



Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- Official - 

APPENDIX C 

 

-----Original Message----- 
From: RKing  
Sent: Friday, February 2, 2024 1:57 PM 
To: Licensing Shared Email  
Subject: Southsea Bruch Klub 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
 
I am informed that Southsea Brunch Kulb is requesting a change of use in its licensing. I feel I 
must object to this request. 
 
 
As I understand it they currently have a restaurant license. Since openning, the 
establishment has been used as a club and not solely as a restaurant. There were numurous 
problems then with noise, urinating, broken bottles, verbal abuse and violence. They have 
managed to tone down some of this but not to a satisfactory degree. As I believe the Police 
have recently informed you. 
 
 
I suppose the clue is in the name, but it seems the licensing body may have been decieved 
about how the establishment was going to be used when the current license was granted. 
Subsequently I would request that if any kind of liquor license is to be granted to this place 
it should remain as it is today, namely a restaurant i.e. Alcohol only with a meal and no late 
opennings. 
 
 
Kind regards 
 
R. King 
 
 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 
 
From: jacqui mair   
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2024 12:14 PM 
To: Licensing Shared Email   
Subject: No 24/00435/LAREVI 
 
LETTER TO SUPPORT THE APPLICATION No 24/00435/LAREVI To whom it may concern : 
 
I am a resident of Saint Ursula Grove and have lived here since 1987. I have eaten and supported all 
the restaurants that have been in place on the corner of Saint Peters Grove at 119 Elm Grove and 
have never experienced any disturbance from the premises in the past. Since the opening of SBK I 
have noticed a considerable demise in the neighbourhood, I often have walked home in a different 
direction due to the clientele outside the property who regularly blocked the pavement and the 
general feeling of being unsafe. I have reported on numerous occasions the noise, which has come 
from the premises past  2am in the morning and have had to resort to earplugs and radio to try and 
drown the noise. These reports should be on record historically. The sound of the “restaurant” can 
be heard regularly on Thursday /Friday and Saturday nights I have usually just coped by closing 
windows and resorting to earplugs. 
 
I also attended a meeting with residents at SBK with Steve Hudson who encouraged us to report to 
contact him personally with any problems and he would deal with it.  Soundproofing was promised 
which has not materialised.  His attitude was generally diffident, Steve Hudson cancelled the second 
meeting, no minutes were taken and I felt he was not the person we needed to address with the 
problems.  Any complaints have been brushed aside by the operators as “nothing to do with SBK” 
which is what Steve Hudson indicated at our meeting. Residents of St Peters Grove have been 
particularly badly affected. It seems curious that the volume of noise and unruly behaviour has 
centred around the Thicket, Saint Peters Grove and a small section of Elm Grove between Saint 
Andrews and Saint Peters Grove, when this has not been the case historically. There have been 
numerous reports of anti‐social behaviour in both roads and it is clear, given their timings, that on 
the balance of this, clientele of SBK causes the issues. The application lists six incidents at the 
premises reported to police prior to the variation hearing on 9 October 2023, none of these 
incidences were mentioned at the hearing on the 9th October 2023. 
 
I have read the application for review made by Hampshire Police and agree with its commentary. 
However, would the licensing sub‐committee be aware that this only includes interactions involving 
the police. It does not include any of the experiences of local residences or any noise complaints 
made to PCC. While the incidents in the application are very important, they only represent the “tip 
of the iceberg” as far as we the local residents are concerned. 
 
I fully support all of the required changes outlined by the Police in their application and ask the sub‐
committee not to allow them to be diluted. The license holder gave assurances to the sub‐
committee at the hearing on 9 Oct 2023, which proved worthless; no further assurances should be 
accepted. I attended the hearing where we expressed grave concerns at the “restaurants” true 
nature; this has now been highlighted as accurate by the report from Hampshire Police “The 
business seems to be entirely based around discounted alcohol, multi purchase discounts and the 
provision of an unspecified amount of alcohol for a fixed fee with 90 minutes to drink your moneys 
worth. The name and branding of ‘Southsea Brunch Club’ is promoting the bottomless booze aspect 
of the business with the term ‘brunch’. The front page of their website states that 'Southsea Brunch 
Klub is the home of the bottomless brunch'. There was a strong assurance as well by the solicitor 

Page 99



representing SBK, that this was the new way ahead for restaurants and he assured us it was not a 
club. The report by the police clearly indicates this is not the case. 
 
 It has been asked that the DPS be removed and would ask whether this person is fit to continue as a 
DPS given the history of SBK and other restaurants they have been involved with. 
May we ask that the Case Officer from PCC Licensing include in his report a summary of ALL 
complaints made to PCC relating to the premises since the license transfer in Nov 2022, to include all 
noise and environmental complaints in addition to any complaints to licensing and notifications of 
breach of licensing conditions.  I would also ask that the Case Officer from PCC licensing include in 
his report details of all visits to the premises   made by licensing staff, dates and times and reasons 
for visiting and what follow up there was as a result of the visits. 
I am happy that the police now have concerns relating to crime and disorder, public safety and 
public nuisance linked to the premises. 
We, like the police have as residents expressed concerns that intoxications and irresponsible drinks 
promotions are a contributory factor to violent crime, disorder, antisocial behaviour and nuisance 
caused by the clientele of the premises and it impacts on not only their staff but also customers and 
the public. 
I hope that a decision will be made to review whether this nightclub (which is what it has become) 
that sits in a residential area will find another home or close. 
 
Jacqui Mair 

 

 
 

 

Page 100



Page 101



 
- Not Classified - 

Representation for review application 24/00435/LAREVI for  
Southsea Brunch Club, 119 Elm Grove, PO5 1LH 
9 February 2024 
 
I wholeheartedly support the Licence Review of these premises. I have been 
living in St Peters Grove since the beginning of 1986 and there have been 
several incarnations, with various proprietors, of the restaurant on the S 
corner where my road meets Elm Grove. They have all been civilised people 
with similar clients, so there have been no problems, as far as I’m aware. 
 
I was present at the licence variation hearing on 9 October, which I felt was a 
travesty. I had previously submitted some photos and thoughts but was 
informed that these were unacceptable as evidence, since I could not show 
that the young people involved were customers of the club. Most of us are not 
prepared to take photographs of customers, some exceptionally drunk or 
drugged, while they are urinating or vomiting in the street, and since none of 
the incidents described here had occurred before Sbk arrived I feel it can be 
confidently claimed that these behaviours had been influenced by their 
attendance at the club. People drinking in other venues along Elm Grove do 
not swarm out in large gangs after midnight or stand in large groups in our 
particular streets drinking and smoking as these do, so they don’t cause the 
problems and  are unlikely to leave via St Peters Grove or The Thicket. 
 
I will now consider comments and recommendations listed in the Notification 
of Decision from that hearing, and whether they have been adhered to. The 
statements from the notification are listed here in bold type: 
 
‘It is unfortunate and disappointing that the application is a result of 
complaints received regarding noise and non-compliance with 
conditions - meaning it is a retrospective attempt to regularise the 
change in the business already in force.’ 
 
There had already been six events reported to the police at the venue when 
this variation hearing took place, including two fights, one involving members 
of the public, but they were not considered.  
 
the application sought approval for an inner lobby at the front of the 
premises  
 
The lobby had been introduced to diminish the noise emerging from the 
venue, as a result of extremely loud live or recorded music being played for a 
large crowd of dancing customers on the ground floor. A thin piece of black 
plastic, now buckled, was also fitted over the outside of the large side 
window, overlooking St Peters Grove. Given the size of the remaining single-
glazed windows, on Elm Grove and St Peters Grove and the fact that either 

Page 102



 
- Not Classified - 

one or both of the street and internal lobby doors are usually left open (Photo 
1), as well as the kitchen door which opens to St Peters, these efforts are 
ineffectual. At a certain volumes, the sound vibrations may also pass through 
the brick walls, the closed window and doors. 
 
and an additional bar in the basement 
 
Mr Hudson had already introduced a second bar in the basement, although 
the existing licence was valid simply for the ground floor bar, with 25 people 
permitted in the bar area. This variation, as well as confirming the extra bar, 
removed the restriction on the number of people in this area. It is evident, 
from the videos and photos on @southseabrunchklub Instagram, that the 
function of the business is a night club with crowds of people dancing on the 
ground floor. These posts seem to be intended to attract those seeking a 
night club and not a restaurant. 
 
There was considerable attention paid by the committee to ensure that there 
was not a disproportionate ratio of drinkers to diners. The rationale for this 
was not clear, but it appeared to have been felt that instead of preventing 
alcohol sales to those not eating, this could be achieved by simply insisting 
that food should be available till an hour and a half before closing time, at 
1.30 or 2.30am, regardless of whether anyone wanted to order or eat it.  
 
The application had sought the re-wording of a condition currently 
preventing alcohol sales other than to persons taking table meals (save 
for those at the bar) to requiring substantial meals until 90 minutes 
before the premises close, and it was felt that clarification for this was 
provided by the amendment that: 
substantial food (substantial food being defined as: food items 
prepared or cooked on the licensed premises and that are typically 
served as a main course or entrée) will be available to order until at 
least 90 minutes before the premises close.” 
There will be a minimum of 85 restaurant covers available at all times 
the premises are open”  
Mr Hudson had actually requested a reduction from 110 covers to 70 and 
his solicitor said during the hearing that no restaurant previously operating in 
the building has ever achieved 110 of these. However, when my friends were 
managing the restaurant as Touchdown and Fat Jaques, there was table 
seating for 150 customers.  
 
Mr Hudson’s solicitor said on several occasions that the intention was to 
operate as a restaurant, but for patrons to remain after eating. The premises 
were continuing to operate as a restaurant but Mr Hudson was trying to 
achieve a ‘degree of flexibility’ within that. He said that ‘The reduction in the 
number of covers is to allow flexibility for customers to remain, ancillary to the 

Page 103



 
- Not Classified - 

meal, and have a drink on the premises whilst also accommodating people 
who just want to come to the venue for the atmosphere, have a drink and 
meet friends who have had a meal there’. To some of us this has the 
hallmark of a night club, or perhaps a restaurant that becomes a night club as 
the night goes on. The Sub Committee felt that reducing covers to 70 would 
lead to a disproportionate ratio of drinkers to diners, although some might feel 
that the possible volume of alcohol to be consumed by any one person was 
of more import. It was noted that flexibility should result in increased viability, 
as a result of increased drinking and less eating. Sbk Instagram posts since 
17 April 2023 had been advertising, for all of the days when open “Drinks 
tables also available”, “Drinks only packages available from 8 pm Fridays and 
Saturdays”etc and they have continued to advertise these since 25 October, 
just after that meeting on 9 October. (Photos 2-7) 
 
removal of the limit of the number allowed in the bar area. 
It was felt by the SubCommittee that the removal of the limit at the bars 
meant that queuing outside the premises should be reduced. Whenever I 
have walked past the venue, the people standing outside in Elm Grove, are 
not waiting to go inside, they have come out to continue to drink, smoke and 
chat with the security guys or the bar staff. There are still sometimes on the 
following day, beer glasses containing liquid, left on the pavement outside the 
building and various glasses left on the window ledge outside the now vacant 
optician’s next door. 
 
In Photo 8, from 14/9/23, it is clear that the people are relaxing outside and 
not queueing to get in. 
In warmer weather, during the summer and autumn of 2023, there would be a 
crowd of customers standing in the street, smoking, drinking, shouting and 
engaging in other activities which they felt unable to perform in the club. This 
would be several people deep, spreading along St Peters Grove, from the 
corner with Elm Grove, for a distance of approx 35 - 40 m. 
In the early hours of October 1, 2023 a neighbour took a photo of some  
women standing around my car, which was parked outside 6, St Peters 
Grove. It was difficult to see what they were doing, but one was bending 
down to rest something on the bonnet. (Photo 9) 
 
Mr Wallsgrove stated at the hearing that this photograph of the girls behind 
the campervan was nothing to do with SBK, they were not customers of SBK, 
and in fact Mr Hudson had provided welfare support to the group as they 
were extremely drunk. He was not required to provide proof of this however. 
The women were actually standing in the area previously described, where 
residents were accustomed to seeing clients of the club congregating to 
smoke and drink. We never see people doing this, unless they are from the 
club, as this is a queue on the pavement coming from the corner where the 
club is situated. The members of the committee, and even Mr Wallsgrove, 

Page 104



 
- Not Classified - 

may not have been familiar with this. It was also said at the hearing that ‘Mr 
Hudson's intention was to become more engaged and hands-on in relation to 
the premises’. We have seen no evidence of any improvement as a result. 
 
 
The premises licence holder shall ensure that staff (and when so 
employed, SIA accredited doorstaff) supervise the orderly departure of 
patrons from the premises to minimise noise nuisance” 
One wonders how this could be achieved. Given the large numbers of people 
in the venue, apparent from the social media posts, how are two or three 
security guards to supervise their departure? Residents hear the screaming 
and shouting in the streets leading from the venue, but quite far from it. Over 
what distance was it anticipated that this supervision would proceed? 
 
 
..the Sub Committee heard and accepted that not every instance of anti-
social behaviour could necessarily be attributed to the premises.. 
 
The subject of a stabbing which had occurred near the building but not 
involving Sbk customers had a considerable number of mentions, presumably 
because Mr Hudson had been required to confirm this. This seemed to loom 
large in the consciousness of Mr Wallsgrove, but was actually the only 
example cited of assault which had been misattributed. Presumably he had 
not known about the two assaults on staff and four other instances of public 
order, spiking and ASB attended by the police before the hearing. 
 
Rubbish Bins 
 
There has been an ongoing problem with rubbish bins, which are required to 
be left in a suitable position for collection on the day that this takes place and 
removed when emptied. Mr Hudson stated after the hearing: ‘I have spoken 
to all parties involved in the bins and will ensure that they are all put away 
and bought out at the correct time. ‘ 
This promise has certainly not been kept. The bins have continued to be left 
for days, partly on the pavement and partly on the road. They are often 
overflowing with debris which is blown along the pavements for quite a 
distance in the wind and bottles and other rubbish straddling the road. There 
is always broken glass in the gutter under the bins and sometimes elsewhere, 
because customers take bottles and glasses outside and stand in various 
places with them. Glasses containing drinks are still found the next day on 
ledges along the sides of the building and elsewhere. Non-residents who 
frequently park in the road comment on the care required to avoid puncturing 
car tyres. After the NYE debacle there were several piles of broken glass on 
the road and pavements, eventually swept up by my neighbour. 
 

Page 105



 
- Not Classified - 

My email forwarded with Photo 10 to the Green, Clean, Tidy team by Derek 
Stone on 12/10/23 stated that: ‘I have been concerned about these bins, 
which have been outside the Sbk side entrance for at least 3 days, with the 
black bin lying on its side and bin bags falling out on to the road. 
There is a v pleasant, elderly Chinese woman living in St Peters Grove who 
walks along this pavement using a tri-walker mobility aid. She has been 
unable to walk past it since these bins were put out. I have previously posted 
complaints regarding bins taking up pavement space on the relevant PCC 
website, and mentioned her problem.’ 
 
Photo 11 shows bins on the pavement and adjacent road, where they had 
remained for 5 days, with the lid open on the large bin, despite the rain. 
 
‘The premises licence holder shall ensure that all external doors and 
windows shall remain closed whilst the premises are open for business 
save for access and egress.’  
The kitchen door is usually open, unless the weather is very cold, as recently. 
As mentioned above, the external door onto Elm Grove is usually open and 
often the lobby door too.  
 

It was suggested by Mr Pollard that if permitted to trade beyond 23:00, 
the following conditions should be stipulated: 

..a provision for a minimum of 2 SIA security staff to be employed at the 
premises for the first 50 customers and a further one SIA security staff 
per 50 or part thereof, until 30 minutes after premises closes to assist 
dispersal.  

This will be difficult as they won’t know how many people will be attending, 
and presumably need to book security staff in advance. They have not shown 
themselves to be capable of predicting how many customers will attend, as 
we saw on NYE, when security staff had to be brought along from nearby 
venues to assist with the fight amongst customers inside the venue and in St 
Peters Grove. 

Sale of alcohol to be authorised as ancillary to a table meal only. 

This will stop people arriving drunk from other venues at, which they seem to 
do, the men to be seen going over the road to urinate outside the launderette 
or on the wall of the adjacent block of flats. 

So this might reduce the vomiting and perhaps the urinating in St Peters 
Grove, as the customers would then be able to find their way to the Sbk 
basement toilets. It must be difficult to get through to those when there are 
dense crowds dancing on the first floor. 

Page 106



 
- Not Classified - 

Photo 12 was taken on 16 September 2023, before the licence variation 
meeting and includes vomit plus the usual cigarette butts, plastic bottle and 
can in the doorway of the Sbk kitchen. There is regularly a pile of vomit in this 
area of pavement, or in the doorway of the now-empty shop adjacent to Sbk 
on Elm Grove. I have never seen any vomit or this amount of rubbish here 
during the 37 years I’ve lived in St Peters Grove. 

On 29 September around 11pm, for instance, as I was walking eastwards 
along Elm Grove, there were just a few people blocking the pavement outside 
the Sbk door which was open, with security men just chatting. I asked the 
customers to clear a space so that I didn’t have to walk in the road and 
waited till they did it. As I turned into St Peters Grove, there was a pile of 
vomit on the pavement at the bottom of the kitchen steps, and two men 
standing nearby urinating. They appear to enjoy doing this against the 
lamppost near the corner. I reported this next day on our local residents’ 
Bottomless WhatsApp group. 

Fabio and the kitchen staff also sit on the steps outside the kitchen door, 
smoking and casting the cigarette butts onto the pavement, which is always 
very messy with these. The pavement at the front of the building, on Elm 
Grove, has lots of butts thrown by customers who wait there, smoking and 
chatting to Fabio and the security staff.  
 
Removal of DPS. 

Fabio, the DPS, is often to be seen on the pavement outside the building, 
chatting to female customers, or standing in the road, welcoming clients with 
a hug as they emerge from taxis.  
 
Photo 13 is a screenshot of one of the Tripadvisor reviews of Sbk, by a 
customer commenting on the bar staff kissing drunk customers in the venue. 
 
On the day before the licence variation meeting he was sweeping the usual 
broken glass from the pavement into the gutter, in the area of the road where 
the bins are left, so my neighbour and I went to check with him that he was 
planning to collect it and put it safely into a refuse container. He replied, 
saying that he was ‘not stupid’ in a very aggressive and arrogant manner. 
 
I would certainly agree that he should be removed from his post. 
 
To prohibit regulated entertainment and dancing.  

Hopefully this would actually be effective in reducing the noise. 

I wish now to consider whether the Sub-Committee were deliberately 
misled during the hearing in October 2023.  

Page 107



 
- Not Classified - 

See comment regarding sale of alcohol as ancillary to meal. 

At the Sub-Committee Hearing, the solicitor acting for Steve Hudson was 
quoted by a News reporter as saying: ‘not everything that happens in the 
vicinity of those premises is directly as a result of SBK customers. There 
have been some issues but they are very few and far between. They are 
sporadic.’ He provided no evidence to support this statement, and was not 
asked for this. Nobody had bothered to check to find out whether there had 
been incidents involving the police or complaints to the council, before Sbk 
arrived, and most of the residents who have been affected have been living in 
the area for decades, as I have, with no problems.  
 
Derek Stone had visited the venue before the Sub-Committee Hearing, and  
observed, as described in an email to the residents of 22/8/23: 
 
‘I visited the premises to conduct observations with regard to a complaint 
received into licensing, regarding the bottomless brunch offers that the 
business offers, and after a long period of observations, I had no concerns 
with regard to how this was being delivered and managed. 
  
I did however go back a few days later and met with the management to go 
through all of the conditions that are attached to the current premises 
licence.’ 
 
He did not mention the date or time of day of his visit.  
 
Last week I received a flyer from the 3 councillors associated with East St 
Thomas’ ward. They had visited Sbk late on the evening of 26 January till 
early morning 27 January to observe the situation in order to make their 
representation. They did not mention whether they went inside. When I 
walked past earlier, at around 10.30 pm it seemed to be empty, unusually for 
a Friday night and one of the two security guards standing, seemingly bored, 
in St Peters Grove, agreed.  

On the following evening, Saturday 27 January, however, there were crowds 
of noisy people outside the Elm Grove entrance early in the evening and two 
extremely drunk women walked across to the Coop, as I did, and then stood 
shouting and swearing in the check out area, trying to engage one of the 
male staff members in conversation, if it could be so described. The 
comments were audible throughout the store. Other customers appeared 
reluctant to go near and when I went to a till, one of the women tried to 
intimidate me, but stopped when a male customer came to check that I was 
ok. On the following day the duty manager said that they have lots of 
problems with drunken customers from Sbk but are not permitted to refuse to 

Page 108



 
- Not Classified - 

serve them unless they are ‘falling over’. She said on the previous evening 
the club was exceptionally busy because it was ‘pay day’. 

In conclusion, it seems bizarre, in view of the police report on the NYE 
‘incident’, involving a fight in the venue which spilled out onto the street, that 
on 3 January, 2024, the Sbk Instagram post announced: ‘Thanks for seeing 
in your New Year with us’ (Photo 14) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



 
- Not Classified - 

Photo 2 
17 April 2023 Sbk Instagram post 

Photo 1 
20 January at 17:40 

Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



 
- Not Classified - 

 Photo 11 
Monday 22 January at 15:42. The bins were in 
this position for 5 days, with the lid open on the 
large bin despite several days of rain. 

Photo 12 
16 September 2023 at 19:08:51 

Pavement of St Peters Grove, outside kitchen 
door of Sbk  

Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Act.
Mr Hudson invited residents to contact him to 'sort out' issues, however had we all
not logged these concerns and only gone to Mr Hudson the official stance by
Police, Enviromental etc all fine. Mr Hudson was exercising damage limitation. 
Poor decision making and bad management at SBK I would request Sub
Committee consider revocation of the premises licence knowing Sub Comm
mislead previously as operation its a CLUB

Kind regards

 
 

Page 120



Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Humphreys, Nickii
To: Stone, Derek
Subject: FW: Comments for Licensing Application 24/00435/LAREVI
Date: 09 February 2024 07:18:38

- Official Sensitive -

N

From:  
Sent: Thursday, February 8, 2024 9:31 PM
To: Licensing Shared Email 
Subject: Comments for Licensing Application 24/00435/LAREVI

Comments summary

Dear Sir/Madam,

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 08/02/2024 9:31 PM from Mrs Jemma Esposito.

Application Summary
Address: 119 Elm Grove Southsea PO5 1LH

Proposal: Review Premises

Case Officer: MR DEREK STONE

Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Mrs Jemma Esposito

Email:

Address:

Comments Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Licensing Application

Reasons for comment:
Comments: 08/02/2024 9:31 PM I've been coming here for quite awhile, but recently started

going on a Sunday for their roast dinners with my friends and family. I have three
young children who absolutely love coming here it's really friendly, the staff
already attentive always happy and the food is always incredible. I've just booked
to go to your Broadway dinner this weekend, which children are thoroughly
excited for. I've also visited on weekends with friends and again great vibes.
Great staff well organised establishment. Well done SBK for such a great place to
go with family and friends.

Kind regards

APPENDIX C

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- Official - 

APPENDIX C 
 

Hi Derek, 
 
I’d like to make a representation on the following review. 
 
I’m sad to see this review is being undertaken especially as I’ve frequented the venue a few 
times in the last 3/4 months. 
 
I’ve even been in for the Brunch and found it to be well run. 
 
I have to say the venue itself has never shown itself to be an issue when I’ve been in there, 
but I understand incidents do happen and venues across the city do suffer from time to 
time. 
 
I would like to note some of the conditions offered by police are rather draconian in nature 
and would surely see the venue unable to carry on trading if they have to abide by such 
conditions. 
 
In the appendix offered, there are some severe allegations of drug use, public urination and 
ASB. I might like to remind officers, councillors and interested parties similar allegations 
were aimed at the Deco venue (over the road)when they tried to amend their licence. Their 
licence extension was granted. I must add I’ve never seen any of these while being in SBK or 
in Elm Grove. 
 
I feel while there are steps to be taken to ensure the venue trades within the four licensing 
objectives, there is an unrealistic expectation from the police in their review with the 
conditions offered by them. Punishing the venue rather than trying to work with them on 
conditions is not the right way to manage this situation. 
 
As a former member of the Licensing Committee of 8 years and Chair of the committee, my 
intention was to avoid politics as a whole. However, I do feel there is a way forward for the 
venue, the responsible authorities and council to move if appropriate conditions are 
applied. 
 
Best wishes, 
 
Scott 
 
 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Licensing Act 2003 - Southsea Brunch Klub, 119 Elm Grove, Southsea, PO5 1LH
	Appendix A - Police Application for Review
	Appendix A - Police Application - additional information
	Appendix B - Premises Licence
	Appendix C - Licensing Authority Application for Review
	Appendix C - Hants & IOW Fire Service representation
	Appendix C - Hants & IOW Fire Service - Annex 1
	Appendix C - Hants & IOW Fire Service - Annex 2
	Appendix C - Hants & IOW Fire Service - Annex 3
	Appendix C - Bird A and Cook L representation
	Appendix C - Cross M representation
	Appendix C - Fricker K representation
	Appendix C - Howarth P representation
	Appendix C - King J representation
	Appendix C - King R representation
	Appendix C - Mair J representation
	Appendix C - Newick P representation
	Appendix C - Scott-Joynt M representation
	Appendix C - Taylor-Jacks H representation
	Appendix C - Wilmot J representation
	Appendix C - Esposito J representation
	Appendix C - Payter-Harris S representation




